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Stand up for your rights:
Travelling with a Seeing Eye Dog
A guide to advocating for yourself
[bookmark: _Toc215661008]About this guide
This guide has been written to support people who are blind or have low vision in navigating challenges they may face when accessing services, spaces, or support with an assistance animal, like a Seeing Eye Dog. 
We understand that these experiences can be frustrating, and this guide aims to offer practical steps for addressing barriers and escalating concerns in a way that makes you feel confident. Whether it’s a situation at a café, on public transport, or with any service provider, the goal is to help you ensure your rights are respected and guide you toward finding solutions. 
If you would like to explore the basics of speaking up for yourself in more depth, you can read our full guide here.
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[bookmark: _Toc215661009]Your rights are protected by law
People who are blind or have low vision, including those who use a Seeing Eye Dog, have the right to live, work and move freely in the community, just like everyone else. 
These rights are protected under the Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (DDA), which makes it unlawful to treat someone unfairly because of their disability. That means you can't be denied access to public spaces, transport, services or accommodation because of your vision, or because you use an assistance animal. 
The DDA applies across Australia, with each state and territory also having laws that help reinforce and support these important protections.
Click here to read our comprehensive guide on the DDA.
Below is a summary of relevant state and territory legislation. These laws help ensure people with disabilities are not unfairly denied access to public places, transport and services, whether they are travelling with a Seeing Eye Dog or not.
[bookmark: _Toc215661010]Legal protections for assistance animals across Australia
Australian Capital Territory
Domestic Animals Act 2000, Sections 104–106
These sections provide that a person with a disability accompanied by an assistance animal has the same right of access to and use of a public place as a person who is not accompanied by an assistance animal. 
New South Wales
Companion Animals Act 1998, Sections 14, 59, 60, and 61
These provisions ensure that a person with a disability is entitled to be accompanied by an assistance animal in any building or public area, that they cannot be denied entry, and that it is unlawful to impose a charge for the assistance animal. 
Northern Territory
Anti-Discrimination Act 1992, Section 21
This provision ensures equal access to public places, services and opportunities for people with disabilities, including those with assistance animals.
Queensland
Guide, Hearing and Assistance Dogs Act 2009, Section 8
This section ensures that a person with a disability, accompanied by their certified guide, hearing or assistance dog has access to any public place, place of accommodation, or public passenger vehicle. 
South Australia
Dog and Cat Management Act 1995, Section 81
This provision allows a person who is wholly or partially blind, deaf or otherwise disabled to be accompanied by an accredited assistance dog in a public place or public passenger vehicle. 
Tasmania
Guide Dogs and Hearing Dogs Act 1967, Section 3
This section grants the right for a person who is blind, has low vision, or is a trainer to be accompanied by a dog guide into any public place or onto any public passenger vehicle. 
Victoria
Domestic Animals Act 1994, Section 7
This provision ensures that a visually impaired person who uses a dog as a dog guide may be always accompanied by that dog and in all public places.  
Western Australia
Dog Act 1976, Section 8
This section ensures that a person who has a disability, the effect of which can be supported using an assistance dog, is entitled to be accompanied by an assistance dog in any building or place open to or used by the public for any purpose, or in any public transport. 
[bookmark: _Toc215661011]What can you do when you’re refused access?
When you come up against an entry issue, whether that’s at a café, in a taxi or rideshare, at a hotel or another service, it’s important to first understand exactly what’s happening. 
For example, if someone says your Seeing Eye Dog isn’t allowed inside, try to clarify whether it’s truly discrimination or simply a misunderstanding.
Articulating the problem
If you’re denied access, it can be helpful to clearly state your rights. For example:
Example 1:
"You have refused me access to your café because I have my Seeing Eye Dog with me. Under the law, I am allowed access. Here is my handler’s card, which identifies my dog as having been trained by an accredited organisation, and as such, it is unlawful for me and my dog to be denied access."
Example 2:
"This is my handler’s card, which sets out my rights, and also the penalties that apply if I am refused access."
Escalating your concerns
If the problem isn't resolved right away, you can take the following steps:
· Start with the person you are dealing with directly.
· If needed, escalate informally to the manager, owner or operator of the premises, vehicle or location.
· Consider a formal complaint if your concerns aren’t addressed.
· Seek advice from an advocacy organisation.
Contacting the owner, manager or operator
When addressing the situation, provide as many details as possible, including the location, the time and date, the specific barrier encountered and the impact it has had on you. Be clear about what could be changed to improve access.
Begin by reaching out to the provider, which could be an organisation, business, company or government agency. Identify the best person to handle your feedback by checking their website or calling directly to make sure you're speaking to the right person. When making contact, note the date, the name of the person you spoke with at the time and the details of the conversation.
Some organisations have a ‘Contact Us’ link or a complaint form on their website, which you can use for submitting your complaint or feedback.
Key information to include:
· Subject: Make it clear that your contact with them is related to access for people with disabilities.
· Disclosure: Briefly explain your vision condition and the role your Seeing Eye Dog plays in accessing the premises, transport or services.
· Your status: Whether you are a regular customer or accessing the service for a specific reason.
· Impact: How the situation has affected you.
· Supporting arguments: Why it’s important for the business to be accessible, and how doing so is beneficial for both you and other customers.
· Request for action: Ask for a clear timeframe for resolution.
Making a complaint
If you don’t receive a response you are happy with after contacting the organisation, you may need to lodge a formal complaint. You can do this through:
· The organisation’s internal complaints process.
· A relevant government body or ombudsman.
· The Australian Human Rights Commission or a state-based anti-discrimination commission. You can lodge a complaint here without a lawyer, and services are free. Complaints can be made in any language, and translation services are available.
Using social media
If you're not receiving a response that satisfies you through those kinds of traditional methods, social media can be a useful tool for highlighting accessibility issues. Many businesses respond quickly to avoid negative publicity, but keep in mind that business pages are often only monitored during business hours. Remember to:
· Be clear and concise about the issue.
· Avoid including personal information like your contact details or specifics about your vision condition.
· Use a reasonable tone, and keep in mind that social media posts are public.
Networking with others
Connecting with others in the blindness and low vision community can be helpful. Sharing experiences can not only show if others have faced similar challenges to you but can also offer valuable insights on how to tackle them together.
It’s also useful when contacting an organisation to mention that others in the community have experienced the same issue.
[bookmark: _Toc215661012]Other common scenarios
Sometimes, access to premises, transport, or services is managed by a third-party organisation, like security guards. The responsibility for addressing access barriers still lies with the primary organisation providing the service.
In cases where access is governed by an overseas parent company, like international airlines operating in Australia, it may still be argued that the DDA applies to their services in Australia.
[bookmark: _Toc215661013]Domestic airline travel in Australia
If you're travelling within Australia, you're entitled to bring your Seeing Eye Dog into the cabin. Make sure to inform the airline when you are booking, so they can allocate a seat for your dog in addition to your own. 
There’s no extra charge for your dog’s seat. Keep in mind that different airlines may have varying booking requirements, so remember to check ahead.
[bookmark: _Toc215661014]Sample email
Here is a sample email that incorporates many of the elements listed above. You can use it as a template to write your own email or letter to organisations when you encounter access issues.
Email: Insert email address 
Subject: Refused access to your motel when I was accompanied by my Seeing Eye Dog
Dear Sir/Madam,
I am writing about the accessibility of your motel for people who are blind or have low vision and are accompanied by their Seeing Eye Dog. I am blind and am always accompanied by my dog when I travel.
I was recently travelling between Sydney and Melbourne, and on the evening of 29th June my wife and I stopped at your motel, intending to spend two nights there. On entering the reception area, we were advised that no animals are permitted in the building. I then explained that my dog is an assistance dog, and by law is entitled to accompany me into accommodation premises. I also produced my handler’s card.
I was again told that no animals are allowed in your motel. When I asked to speak to the owner or manager, I was told that I was speaking to the manager and that the owner was unavailable.
We were left with no choice other than to go back out into the cold and drive around town looking for alternative accommodation. 
It is very disappointing that when trying to secure accommodation at your motel, I do not have the same opportunity to access the same accommodation as the rest of the community simply because I am accompanied by my Seeing Eye Dog. 
There are Federal and State laws that protect the rights of people with a disability, such as the Disability Discrimination Act. Section 5 states that discrimination occurs when a person with a disability is treated less favourably than a person without a disability. Section 9 states that a person is discriminated against when he or she is treated less favourably when accompanied by an assistance animal.
Would you please consider the matters I have raised above, with a view to changing your policy in relation to assistance animals? Could you also let me know when I can expect your motel to be accepting bookings from people who are accompanied by their assistance animal, so that they will experience the same offers of accommodation as the rest of the community? 
If you have any questions, please let me know. 
I would appreciate a response from you by 18th July, so I may consider any next steps.
Yours sincerely,
(insert your name)
(insert your contact details).
[bookmark: _Toc215661015]Who to contact to make a complaint
It can be hard to know who to contact when you want to escalate your complaint to a higher level, and can also depend on the state you live in.
[bookmark: _Toc215661016]NATIONAL
Australian Human Rights Commission (AHRC)
National Information Service: 1300 656 419
Email: infoservice@humanrights.gov.au 
Web: https://www.humanrights.gov.au/complaint-information 
[bookmark: _Toc215661017]AUSTRALIAN CAPITAL TERRITORY
ACT Human Rights Commission 
Ph: 02 6205 2222
Email: human.rights@act.gov.au 
Web: http://hrc.act.gov.au/ 
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Anti-Discrimination Commission Queensland (ADCQ)
State-wide telephone information and enquiry line: 1300 130 670 
Web: https://www.adcq.qld.gov.au/contact-us 
Guide, Hearing and Assistance Dogs 
https://www.qld.gov.au/disability/out-and-about/ghad/handlers/your-rights#:~:text=How%20to%20make%20a%20complaint,call%20(07)%203097%207203. 
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Victorian Equal Opportunity and Human Rights Commission (VEOHRC)
Enquiry Line: 1300 292 153
Web: http://www.humanrightscommission.vic.gov.au/making-a-complaint 
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Point to Point Transport Commissioner
Web: https://www.pointtopoint.nsw.gov.au/contact-us
Anti-Discrimination Board NSW 
Ph: 02 9268 5544 between 9am – 1pm and 2pm – 4pm
Email: complaintsadb@justice.nsw.gov.au 
Web:http://www.antidiscrimination.justice.nsw.gov.au/Pages/adb1_makingacomplaint/adb1_makingacomplaint.aspx  
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Northern Territory Anti-Discrimination Commission 
Ph: 1800 813 846 
Email: antidiscrimination@nt.gov.au 
Web: http://www.adc.nt.gov.au/index.html 
Anti-Discrimination Commission Queensland (ADCQ)
State-wide telephone information and enquiry line: 1300 130 670 
Web: https://www.adcq.qld.gov.au/contact-us 
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Equal Opportunity Commission South Australia
Ph: 08 8207 1977 between 10am – 3pm 
Email: eoc@agd.sa.gov.au 
Web: http://www.eoc.sa.gov.au/eo-you/making-complaint 
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Equal Opportunity Tasmania 
Ph: 03 6165 7515
Email: office@equalopportunity.tas.gov.au  
Web: http://equalopportunity.tas.gov.au/complaints 
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Equal Opportunity Commission (WA)
Ph 08 9216 3900
Email: eoc@eoc.wa.gov.au 
Web: http://www.eoc.wa.gov.au/complaints-inquiries/making-a-complaint 
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While Vision Australia may not be able to provide individual advocacy in every situation, we can often offer general advice or help point you in the right direction.
If you’d like more information on self-advocacy strategies or to obtain this guide in another format, call Vision Australia’s advocacy team on 1300 847 466 or email advocacy@visionaustralia.org
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Vision Australia National Call Centre
Telephone: 1300 847 466 
Email: info@visionaustralia.org
Vision Australia Seeing Eye Dogs 
General enquiries: 1800 037 773
Email: Info@seda.org.au 
This guide was last updated in August 2025 by the Vision Australia Advocacy team.
Page 1 of 10
image1.png
QS% Vision
Australia

Blindness. Low Vision.Opportunity




